# SUBORDINATE LEGISLATION COMMITTEE

Tuesday 31 January 2006

Session 2

© Parliamentary copyright. Scottish Parliamentary Corporate Body 2006.

Applications for reproduction should be made in writing to the Licensing Division, Her Majesty's Stationery Office, St Clements House, 2-16 Colegate, Norwich NR3 1BQ Fax 01603 723000, which is administering the copyright on behalf of the Scottish Parliamentary Corporate Body.

Produced and published in Scotland on behalf of the Scottish Parliamentary Corporate Body by Astron.

# CONTENTS

# Tuesday 31 January 2006

	Col	
--	-----	--

DELEGATED POWERS SCRUTINY	1525
Human Tissue (Scotland) Bill: as amended at Stage 2	1525
Local Electoral Administration and Registration Services (Scotland) Bill: Stage 1	1525
EXECUTIVE RESPONSE	
National Bus Travel Concession Scheme for Older and Disabled Persons (Scotland)	
Order 2006 (draft) DRAFT INSTRUMENT SUBJECT TO APPROVAL	1532
DRAFT INSTRUMENT SUBJECT TO APPROVAL.	1533
Budget (Scotland) Act 2005 Amendment (No 2) Order 2006 (draft)	1533
INSTRUMENT SUBJECT TO APPROVAL	
Local Government Finance (Scotland) Order 2006 (SSI 2006/29)	1534
INSTRUMENTS SUBJECT TO ANNULMENT	1534
Electricity (Applications for Consent) Amendment (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (SSI 2006/18)	1534
Ethical Standards in Public Life etc (Scotland) Act 2000 (Codes of Conduct for Members	
of certain Scottish Public Authorities) Order 2006 (SSI 2006/26)	1534
Potatoes Originating in Egypt (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2006 (SSI 2006/27)	1534
Private Landlord Registration (Information and Fees) (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2006	
(SSI 2006/28)	1534
INSTRUMENT NOT SUBJECT TO PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE	
Crofting Counties Agricultural Grants (Scotland) Scheme 2006 (SSI 2006/24)	
INSTRUMENT NOT LAID BEFORE THE PARLIAMENT	1536
Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act 2005 (Commencement and Savings) Order 2006	
(SSI 2006/19)	1536
EXECUTIVE CORRESPONDENCE	
Older Cattle (Disposal) (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (SSI 2006/4)	
Prisons and Young Offenders Institutions (Scotland) Amendment Rules 2006 (SSI 2006/5)	1538

# **SUBORDINATE LEGISLATION COMMITTEE** 4<sup>th</sup> Meeting 2006, Session 2

CONVENER

\*Dr Sylvia Jackson (Stirling) (Lab)

DEPUTY CONVENER Gordon Jackson (Glasgow Govan) (Lab)

### COMMITTEE MEMBERS

\*Mr Adam Ingram (South of Scotland) (SNP) \*Mr Kenneth Macintosh (Eastwood) (Lab) \*Mr Stew art Maxwell (West of Scotland) (SNP)

\*Murray Tosh (West of Scotland) (Con)

#### COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTES

Mr Ted Brocklebank (Mid Scotland and Fife) (Con) Maureen Macmillan (Highlands and Islands) (Lab) Stew art Stevenson (Banff and Buchan) (SNP)

\*attended

CLERK TO THE COMMITTEE Ruth Cooper SENIOR ASSISTANT CLERK David McLaren

Loc ATION Committee Room 2

# **Scottish Parliament**

# Subordinate Legislation Committee

Tuesday 31 January 2006

[THE CONVENER opened the meeting at 10:30]

# **Delegated Powers Scrutiny**

## Human Tissue (Scotland) Bill: as amended at Stage 2

The Convener (Dr Sylvia Jackson): I welcome members to the fourth meeting of the Subordinate Legislation Committee in 2006. I have received apologies from Gordon Jackson. I remind members to switch off their mobile phones.

Members will recall that the committee sought reassurance from the Executive that no specific provision in relation to confidentiality was needed in the Human Tissue (Scotland) Bill. I think that it was Stewart Maxwell who pointed that out. The Executive has provided a summary of the legal background and the reasoning behind its view that confidentiality issues are already adequately covered elsewhere and that, as a result, no specific provisions are required in the bill.

**Mr Stewart Maxwell (West of Scotland) (SNP):** The Executive's explanation was useful. It would have been helpful if it had produced it in the first place, or even the second place—it should not have taken the Executive until the third place to provide it. That is the issue here. The reasons that the Executive has given are fine, and I accept what it has said, but to have had such a flurry of correspondence on the matter has not been helpful.

**The Convener:** So we are pleased enough with the reply that we have now got.

Mr Maxwell: Yes.

### Local Electoral Administration and Registration Services (Scotland) Bill: Stage 1

**The Convener:** Part 1 of the Local Electoral Administration and Registration Services (Scotland) Bill covers local government elections; section 1 is on "Setting of performance standards". During its consideration of the bill the lead committee, the Local Government and Transport Committee, expressed some concern about the lack of parliamentary scrutiny to which performance standards will be subject.

Mr Kenneth Macintosh (Eastwood) (Lab): Part does have enough explanation 1 not accompanying it to make it satisfactory for our purposes. A number of questions arise throughout part 1, and one of them is on the setting of performance standards. It is perhaps an issue of policy as much as anything else. It is not clear what the Executive intends to do with the code on performance standards that it intends to draw up. Because that is not clear, it is not easy for the committee to judge whether the appropriate level of scrutiny is being applied or whether the appropriate type of instrument is being used.

It is difficult to decide exactly what to do, but I suggest that we write to the Executive and request further information and draw the matter to the attention of the lead committee. The issues are more to do with policy than with the appropriateness of the level of scrutiny that is applied or the statutory vehicle that is used.

**The Convener:** As I understand it, the only current statutory requirement is that ministers lay a copy of the final published performance standards before the Parliament. Therefore, the Parliament will have no opportunity to debate them. The question is whether or not we think that the matter is sufficiently important for us to do more.

**Mr Macintosh:** That is why it is really a matter of policy. I cannot imagine that the Parliament will want to get particularly involved in most of the issues that are covered in this part of the bill. The standard of returning officers in Scotland is important, but I cannot imagine that it is really necessary to treat the matter as other than an Executive, administrative process. It does not require parliamentary debate. At the same time, local government elections are of considerable political and parliamentary significance.

At this stage, I think that we should draw it to the attention of the lead committee that the nature of the subordinate legislation is such that there will not be as full parliamentary scrutiny as its members might think, and that it is up to them to judge whether the matter is important or not.

The Convener: I was at the Local Government and Transport Committee meeting when the bill was discussed and I would say that part of the issue was about understanding what will happen in relation to the various standards. I think that you are saying that there is not much concern for this committee as far as subordinate legislation is concerned, compared with the concern about the clarity of the policy and what is actually going to happen.

**Mr Maxwell:** I will not disagree with what has been said, but I do not think that there are only policy issues to consider here. Section 1 seems to cover the grey area that we sometimes discuss about whether or not something is legislative in character. We have discussed such examples here at the committee and with the Executive. It appears that the performance standards will be enforceable, which suggests that they are legislative in character.

I do not think that this is just about policy. There is a genuine issue about whether there should be parliamentary scrutiny. If we agree that the standards are legislative in character, there should be that scrutiny, and it will not be sufficient simply to lay a copy of them before the Parliament. That is the question for us. How to judge the standard or performance of returning officers is a policy matter for the lead committee. The legislative character of the performance standards is for this committee, however. There is an argument to be had on that.

The Convener: If you think that it would be safer to be cautious, we should write to the Executive.

**Mr Maxwell:** I thought that we had already agreed to write to the Executive.

The Convener: Yes.

**Mr Maxwell:** We should also include the point that I have just discussed. That is the issue for us.

**The Convener:** Yes. We can ask about that grey area and about the slightly legislative nature of the performance standards, given that they are enforceable.

**Mr Maxwell:** That is the point that we must ask about. It is not absolutely clear whether the standards are or are not enforceable. As I think both you and Ken Macintosh said earlier, there is an issue of clarity. If the Executive had explained the matter earlier, we would not be having this debate about it. If the Executive can tell us whether or not the standards are enforceable and what its intention is, with a bit more explanation, we might be able to answer those questions.

**The Convener:** Do you have anything to add, Murray?

**Murray Tosh (West of Scotland) (Con):** No, I am quite happy with that recommendation.

The Convener: Good. Is that agreed?

Members indicated agreement.

**The Convener:** Section 2 is on directions concerning performance reports. The provision enables ministers to

"issue directions to returning officers to provide the Scottish Ministers with such reports regarding their level of performance against the standards ... as may be specified in the direction."

Are members quite happy with that?

Members indicated agreement.

The Convener: Section 4 is on "Access to election documents". The lead committee voiced some concern about the provision. The delegated powers memorandum gives no indication of the sorts of restrictions that ministers may wish to impose on the use of information in what is a potentially sensitive area. The exercise of the power is subject to the affirmative procedure, but we might want to ask the Executive a little more about it.

**Mr Maxwell:** We should ask about it. This brings us back to the subject of clarity. We can guess what ministers would probably do, but we should ask the Executive about the circumstances, and what restrictions are envisaged. Those are the questions that the Executive should have answered in the first place, but I think that we should ask them now.

**The Convener:** Okay. Section 6 is entitled "Access to election documents: supplementary". A couple of things have been highlighted that we might wish to clarify with the Executive.

**Mr Maxwell:** The Executive is rather hedging its bets here. It does not seem entirely sure. The phrase from the memorandum on delegated powers that is highlighted in our legal briefing is:

"likely to be subject to negative resolution procedure".

That seems an unusual phrase to use. Powers either are or are not subject to the negative procedure.

**Murray Tosh:** Perhaps the Executive is anticipating that the rules will be changed to give the committee the right to determine that.

Mr Maxwell: Perhaps.

**The Convener:** Perhaps not. That point is highlighted in paragraph 24 of the legal brief, which covers the difficulty of the phrase:

"likely to be subject to negative resolution procedure".

The question is what procedure will apply to orders under section 3(1) of the Local Governance (Scotland) Act 2004, which are affected by the bill.

There is a second point. Why has the Executive chosen to draft section 6(10) of the bill using a cross-reference to section 3(1) of the 2004 act? That would seem to add to the confusion that is already created in relation to section 3 of the act. How does the Executive consider that that will work in practice? Those are the two main points that we should raise. Is that agreed?

#### Members indicated agreement.

The Convener: Section 9 is on the power to make a code of practice regarding the attendance of observers at elections. The lead committee expressed concerns about the lack of scrutiny of the proposed code of practice. If I am correct, this is the point that is not included in the delegated powers memorandum. Section 9(1) of the bill simply states:

"The Scottish Ministers must prepare a code of practice".

The code requires only to be laid before the Parliament, so the Parliament will have no formal opportunity to debate it or to influence its scope and content. Ministers are not obliged to consult on the content of the code, but answers given by officials to the Local Government and Transport Committee suggest that they intend to do so. The code is being drafted in close consultation with Whitehall, where the Electoral Administration Bill is currently being considered and in respect of which a similar code is being drawn up. Do members have any views?

**Mr Maxwell:** I am in danger of repeating myself because we are talking about the same problem. The issue is sensitive and many people will be concerned about these matters. We should at least ask the Executive for its reasoning, and whether it is not more appropriate to lay a draft before the Parliament, as the legal brief suggests, so that the Parliament can consider it before it is approved. There is a variety of possibilities; if it came forward with one of those, the Parliament might have more confidence in the Executive's intentions.

The Convener: The second suggestion that we might consider is that ministers could make the code, but they would need to make an order that would be subject to procedure before the code could come into force. Perhaps we should just write back to the Executive and say that because of the sensitive nature of the issue, it should consider those possibilities. Is that agreed?

#### Members indicated agreement.

**The Convener:** Section 17 is entitled "Return as to election expenses". Given the nature of the subordinate legislation involved, there is a question mark over whether an order might be a more suitable legislative vehicle than regulations in this case. Is it reasonable that we should write to the Executive to ask that?

#### Members indicated agreement.

**The Convener:** No points arise on section 19, "Personal identifiers: piloting etc" or on section 22, "Details to appear on election publications". Do members have any further comments?

#### Members: No.

The Convener: Section 25 is on "Miscellaneous amendments". The power being conferred allows ministers fairly wide discretion to prescribe in regulations the circumstances in which ballot papers may be cancelled or removed. There are two questions that we might ask. In what circumstances is it envisaged that the power will be used, and why, on such a sensitive issue, did the Executive not feel able to put conditions on the exercise of the power into the bill?

**Mr Maxwell:** This is probably one of the most sensitive issues in the bill. I am sure that it is perfectly all right and that the Executive's intention is to deal with voter fraud, which is admirable, but given the extent and scope of the power, limits should have been included in the bill.

I do not know what the current position is, but I think that if someone wants to make a challenge, they will have to go to court. It might be that the new power will allow returning officers—I am not sure—effectively to cancel ballot papers. That is a big change. If that is what is happening, the Parliament will want to be fully aware of it and take a view on it. Again, I am not sure from the bill or the delegated powers memorandum if that is what is happening. The Executive must provide clarity in that area.

**Mr Macintosh:** Correct me if I am wrong, but the existing power is subject to the affirmative resolution procedure.

**The Convener:** Yes, it is, but the big issue is the clarity of the provision.

Mr Macintosh: I agree with that.

The Convener: Good point. Keep checking.

We move on to the schedule, on the meaning of election expenses. There are some concerns about the delegated powers memorandum and some confusion about whether the power is an order-making power that is subject to the affirmative procedure or the negative. It is considered that it should be subject to the affirmative procedure. That is the first point.

The second point is that the scope of the power is very wide, but the delegated powers memorandum is unfortunately short on detail about the policy background. It is hard to tell how the Executive envisages using the power. Again, the issue is one of clarity.

**Mr Maxwell:** I thought that the phrase in our legal brief that it is "clearly and unhelpfully inaccurate" summed up the delegated powers memorandum.

**The Convener:** Yes. So we are seeking much greater clarity on those two points. Is that agreed?

#### Members indicated agreement.

**The Convener:** We move on to part 2 of the bill. Several delegated powers on which no particular points have been raised are listed in the memorandum. Does anyone have any comments?

#### Members: No.

**The Convener:** Part 2 also went through the Local Government and Transport Committee more easily than part 1.

No points arise on the sections in part 3 of the bill. Does any member have any points?

### Members: No.

**The Convener:** Likewise, no points arise on section 52, "Ancillary provision" or section 53, "Short title and commencement". Is that okay?

Members indicated agreement.

# **Executive Response**

### National Bus Travel Concession Scheme for Older and Disabled Persons (Scotland) Order 2006 (draft)

10:46

**The Convener:** This is the only Executive response we have today. Members will recall that we tried to find out whether an operator can decide not to enter the scheme. The response is very much about Scottish ministers admitting or refusing to admit someone to the scheme. I do not think that it answers the question. What do members think?

**Mr Maxwell:** No, it does not. Last week we had a discussion about asking questions and the Executive answering questions that we did not ask. We still seem to be in a sort of "Yes Minister" otherworld. The question is clear and I would have thought that the Executive could have answered it clearly rather than wandering all over the place and not coming to any conclusion. I presume that we just have to ask again.

**The Convener:** Unfortunately we cannot, because we have to report on the draft order this week. All that we can do is report to the lead committee and the Parliament and say, "We asked the question, but we did not get an answer."

**Mr Maxwell:** I accept what you say about the timescale, but I wonder whether it would be reasonable for us to pursue the matter and ask the question again anyway. The order will go through the Parliament and be published, but if the question is not answered, no one will be any the wiser.

**The Convener:** I am quite happy to do that. We will report to the lead committee and the Parliament that the meaning of the draft order could have been a lot clearer, and we will write to the Executive to ask for an answer to that little question that we keep asking.

# Draft Instrument Subject to Approval

### Budget (Scotland) Act 2005 Amendment (No 2) Order 2006 (draft)

#### 10:48

**The Convener:** The draft order makes further revisions to the Budget (Scotland) Act 2005, and amends amendments made by an earlier order. This is the one where two draft orders are in progress at the same time. Is it agreed that we write to the Executive to ask why it has taken that approach and why there are two draft orders progressing at the same time?

**Mr Maxwell:** This might just show my lack of understanding of the legal brief, but does this draft order amend the first draft order that amends the Budget (Scotland) Act 2005, or does each draft order amend different bits of the act?

**The Convener:** We will ask Margaret Macdonald to explain that.

Margaret Macdonald (Legal Adviser): The first draft amendment order amends the act by putting in new figures. This draft amendment order amends some of the figures that were in the first draft amendment order; it does not actually amend the first draft amendment order. Both draft amendment orders amend the act.

Mr Maxwell: It is "Yes Minister" is it not?

**The Convener:** There is an overlap, and it is certainly confusing. As we keep saying, we want to try to make sure that these things are as clear as possible.

Mr Maxwell: It is as clear as mud.

**The Convener:** Do members agree that we will ask those questions?

Members indicated agreement.

## Instrument Subject to Approval

### Local Government Finance (Scotland) Order 2006 (SSI 2006/29)

### 10:49

The Convener: No points arise on the order.

# Instruments Subject to Annulment

### Electricity (Applications for Consent) Amendment (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (SSI 2006/18)

#### 10:50

The Convener: Although no substantive points arise on the regulations, one minor point is that the drafting with regard to generating capacity could have been better. Do members agree to write informally to the Executive on the matter?

Members indicated agreement.

### Ethical Standards in Public Life etc (Scotland) Act 2000 (Codes of Conduct for Members of certain Scottish Public Authorities) Order 2006 (SSI 2006/26)

The Convener: No points arise on the order.

### Potatoes Originating in Egypt (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2006 (SSI 2006/27)

**The Convener:** Do members wish to ask the Executive why it did not take this opportunity to update the principal order's references to the Plant Health (Great Britain) Order 1993 (SI 1993/1320), which was revoked and replaced by the Plant Health (Scotland) Order 2005 (SSI 2005/613)? That would have been helpful.

Members indicated agreement.

### Private Landlord Registration (Information and Fees) (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2006 (SSI 2006/28)

The Convener: No particular points arise on the amendment regulations. However, members will have received Johann Lamont's letter, which gives a rather full explanation of why the 21-day rule was breached and provides information that the Communities Committee received with regard to the deadline. As members will see, the Executive tried very hard to minimise the period during which the higher fee would be applicable. Do members have any questions? I am sure that we can at least welcome the fact that we have received quite a full explanation of the breach.

**Murray Tosh:** I like the way in which the legal brief asks us "to consider whether" we are

"prepared to forgive the breach".

It would have been nice if the Executive had also asked for forgiveness.

# Instrument Not Subject to Parliamentary Procedure

# Crofting Counties Agricultural Grants (Scotland) Scheme 2006 (SSI 2006/24)

10:52

The Convener: No points arise on the scheme.

# Instrument Not Laid Before the Parliament

## Environmental Assessment (Scotland) Act 2005 (Commencement and Savings) Order 2006 (SSI 2006/19)

10:52

The Convener: No points arise on the order.

# **Executive Correspondence**

### Older Cattle (Disposal) (Scotland) Regulations 2006 (SSI 2006/4)

### 10:52

**The Convener:** We wrote to the Executive about two instruments. Do members have any comments on the correspondence that we have received on the regulations? As you will recall, our legal advice stated that, with regard to summarily triable offences, the regulations would impose the statutory maximum penalty instead of the standard scale and suggested that, as a result, the Executive had interpreted things wrongly. The Executive response says:

"After considering the Committee's further helpful comments, the Executive will bring forward an amendment."

That is good news.

We also asked the Executive why it could not have laid the regulations earlier. To be fair, it has explained that because it had only a very short period before Christmas it would have had to rush matters and that, when it came back after Christmas, it still had two weeks to work on the regulations.

**Mr Maxwell:** I am speaking a little bit from memory, but am I right in saying that the English laid their regulations on 22 December?

The Convener: Yes.

**Mr Maxwell:** So is the Executive saying that it knew about and had sight of those regulations and could have laid its own regulations at the time, but decided otherwise?

**The Convener:** Yes, because it thought that it would be able to do a better job if it waited until after Christmas.

**Mr Maxwell:** That is fine. At least we now understand that it made a conscious decision in that respect.

**The Convener:** The Executive has provided a fairly full explanation. Are we content with that as far as we can be?

**Mr Maxwell:** Well, no. Because the English regulations were laid before Christmas, they did not breach the 21-day rule. However, the Executive made a conscious decision to wait until after Christmas and breached the rule when it was not necessary to do so.

**The Convener:** From what I can gather, the Executive would have breached the rule anyway. It says in its response:

"It was considered that rushing consideration of the EU legislation and the final stages of the drafting process was not justified."

That is the other major point.

Mr Maxwell: Fair enough. I must have misremembered.

**The Convener:** I think that we were wondering why the English had got on to the matter more quickly than the Executive had.

Mr Maxwell: That explains things.

**Murray Tosh:** Another case for forgiveness, perhaps.

### Prisons and Young Offenders Institutions (Scotland) Amendment Rules 2006 (SSI 2006/5)

**The Convener:** As members will recall, we raised concerns that, although a press release was issued with the amendment rules, they were not accompanied by an Executive note and we felt that they required some kind of policy statement.

Do members have any views on the Executive's response? It does not seem to be clear about the fact that the Executive note is a policy statement. Instead, its opinion is

"that the effect of this instrument is fully explained in the Explanatory Note"

and that there is no need for an Executive note.

**Mr Macintosh:** Perhaps we should simply write back to the Executive, saying that we do not agree with that opinion and that we feel that it is good practice to issue an explanatory note and an Executive note. After all, they have different functions. In fact, I thought that we had agreed that with the Executive.

The Convener: The Executive is arguing that, in this case, the effect is fully explained in the explanatory note. However, our point is that the explanatory note and the Executive note serve two separate functions. Moreover, someone who accesses the legislation on the website will not find an Executive note. Even though a press release containing the relevant information was issued, it will not necessarily be included with the amendment rules.

Mr Maxwell: So the explanatory note will not be on the website.

The Convener: No. The explanatory note will be on the website, but the Executive note will not be. I am sorry—did I say the wrong thing?

Mr Maxwell: So the explanatory note will be on the website.

The Convener: Yes.

1539

**Mr Maxwell:** I know that the explanatory note and the Executive note serve different purposes, but if the explanatory note will be available on the website and will provide exactly the same information—

**The Convener:** Well, that is what the Executive is arguing.

Mr Maxwell: Yes, I know.

**The Convener:** However, our advice certainly suggests that, in this particular case, having a policy statement would have been quite helpful. After all, the Executive issued a press release with the rules.

**Mr Maxwell:** I have just seen the explanatory note. I have not counted the words in it, but there seem to be about 12. It does not look as if it explains very much.

**The Convener:** There was certainly a feeling that, in this case, an Executive note would have been useful not only for us but, more important, for members of the public to allow them to read it alongside the rules. After all, it was thought necessary to issue a press release for the rules.

Mr Maxwell: Yes.

**The Convener:** Does the committee wish to seek a response from the Executive or does it wish to leave the matter at that?

**Murray Tosh:** Having taken us through all that, convener, I think that it would be appropriate to raise the matter properly and seek a response from the Executive.

**The Convener:** So, do members agree to ask again about those matters, particularly with regard to the public information that will be available?

Members indicated agreement.

**The Convener:** Before we move into private session, I should welcome Adam Ingram to the meeting.

#### 10:59

Meeting continued in private until 12:39.

- Members who would like a printed copy of the *Official Report* to be forwarded to them should give notice at the Document Supply Centre.
- No proofs of the *Official Report* can be supplied. Members who want to suggest corrections for the archive edition should mark them clearly in the daily edition, and send it to the Official Report, Scottish Parliament, Edinburgh EH99 1SP. Suggested corrections in any other form cannot be accepted.

The deadline for corrections to this edition is:

#### Wednesday 8 February 2006

#### PRICES AND SUBSCRIPTION RATES

OFFICIAL REPORT daily editions

Single copies: £5.00 Meetings of the Parliament annual subscriptions: £350.00

The archive edition of the Official Report of meetings of the Parliament, written answers and public meetings of committees will be published on CD-ROM.

WRITTEN ANSWERS TO PARLIAMENTARY QUESTIONS weekly compilation

Single copies: £3.75 Annual subscriptions: £150.00

Standing orders will be accepted at Document Supply.

Published in Edinburgh by Astron and available from:

Blackwell's Bookshop 53 South Bridge Edinburgh EH1 1YS 0131 622 8222	Blackwell's Scottish Parliament Documentation Helpline may be able to assist with additional information on publications of or about the Scottish Parliament, their availability and cost:	RNID Typetalk calls welcome on 18001 0131 348 5412 Textphone 0845 270 0152
London WC 1 7DZ	Telephone orders and inquiries	sp.info@scottish.parliament.uk
	0131 622 8283 or 0131 622 8258	All documents are available on the Scottish Parliament website at:
All trade orders for Scottish Parliament documents should be placed through Blackwell's Edinburgh E-m ail orders bus iness.e dinburgh@blackwell.co.uk Subscriptions & Standing Orders bus iness.e dinburgh@blackwell.co.uk		www.scottish.parliament.uk
		Accredited Agents (see Yellow Pages)
		and through good booksellers

Printed in Scotland by Astron